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31

2020

5,379,779

(6,470,165)
18,367,767
(7,879,831)

381,028
930,061
89,896
913

(87)
(85,442)
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569,181

(684,543)
1,943,310
(833,686)

40,313

98,400

9,511
97

)
(9,040)

10,713,919

1,133,533

9,460,856
(18,086,376)
(2,533,271)

1,000,959
(1,913,539)
(268,020)

(11,158,791)

(1,180,600)

(444,872)
878,211

(47,067)
92,915

433,339

45,847

7,398
(109)

107/266

783
(12)



2020

NAV

NAV

NAV

31

EDINETOOOO

o = 2573

Ooooooooooooooooooad

98.86 9,737
6.47 653
(0.58) (290)
5.89 363
(3.30) (90)

101.45 10,010

5.97% 3.73%

(1.15%) (1.15%)
(0.89%) (0.90%)
(2.04%) (2.05%)
8.42% 8.59%
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2020 31

93,251,042 93,251,042

93,251,042 93,251,042
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2019 625,640 419,860
77,120 17,880
(156,310) (25,700)
2020 31 546,450 412,040
100
10,000

100 100 10
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11

2020 31
2,181,300 351,971

2020 31
775,371

100

12,000

5,000
5,000
1,000

1,000

0.025

0.35
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10,000

0.50

0.10

750

2020 31

1,032
1,963
27,709
17,326
860
47,626
3,021
33,642
133,179
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NAV
NAV

2020 31
2020 31
107.73500
10
2016 ( FASB ) 2016-
01 ( 825-10):
( ASU  2016-01 ) GAAP
FASB
(
) ASU 2016-01
2018 12 15 2019 12 15
ASU 2016-01
2016 FASB ASU 2016-15 ( 230):
2018 12 15

2016 11 FASB ASU 2016-18 ( 230):
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2018 12 15
2018 FASB ASU 2018-13 ( 820)
FASB
GAAP
ASU 2018-13
2019 12 15
2020
31 ASU 2018-13
2020 10
2020 2020 10
1,385,181
0
4,257,813
17,147,615

2020 10

119/266



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 31

NK CAT Bond Fund Class A JPY (Hedged)

Shares 407,110 38,842,452 41.45
NK CAT Bond Fund Class A USD Shares 509,444 54,408,590 58.05
: 87,036,479 93,251,042 99.50

JPY
usb
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Alamo Re Ltd Series A FRN 07-Jun-24

Alamo Re Ltd Series A FRN 05-Jun-26

Bowline Re Ltd 2018 Series A FRN 23-May-22
Bowline Re Ltd 2019 FRN 20-Mar-26

Cape Lookout Re Ltd FRN 25-Feb-22

Cape Lookout Re Ltd FRN 09-May-22

Everglades Re Il Ltd FRN 04-May-21
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd 2018 1 A FRN 06-Aug-21
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd 0.5% 07-Mar-22
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd A FRN 27-Feb-26
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd B FRN 27-Feb-26

Galileo Re Ltd Series A FRN 06-Nov-20

Galileo Re Ltd Series A FRN 08-Jan-27

Galileo Re Ltd Series C FRN 08-Jan-27

Galileo Re Ltd Series D FRN 08-Jan-27
Integrity Re 1l Ltd Series A FRN 12-Apr-28
Kilimanjaro Re Ltd 2018 1 A1 FRN 06-May-22
Kilimanjaro Re Ltd 2018 1 FRN 05-May-26
Kilimanjaro 11 Re Ltd Al FRN 20-Apr-21
Kilimanjaro 1l Re Ltd FRN 20-Apr-21
Kilimanjaro 1l Re Ltd FRN 21-Apr-22
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series A FRN 19-Dec-23
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series A FRN 19-Dec-24
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series B FRN 19-Dec-23
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series B FRN 19-Dec-24
Manatee Re Ltd Il Series B FRN 07-Jun-21
Manatee Re Ltd Il FRN 09-Jun-25

Matterhorn Re Ltd Series A FRN 07-Dec-23
Matterhorn Re Ltd Series B FRN 07-Dec-23
Matterhorn Re Ltd Series B FRN 07-Dec-23

Mona Lisa Re Ltd Series A FRN 09-Jan-23

Mona Lisa Re Ltd Series B FRN 09-Jan-23
Northshore Re Il Ltd FRN 06-Jul-20

Northshore Re Il Ltd 18 1 A FRN 08-Jul-22
Northshore Re Il Ltd FRN 07-Jul-26

Riverfront Re Ltd Series B FRN 15-Jan-21
Sanders Re Ltd FRN 07-Apr-22
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2,000,000 1,983,000 1.53
1,000,000 981,600 0.76
3,000,000 2,922,000 2.26
1,750,000 1,733,550 1.34
1,250,000 1,229,625 0.95
1,375,000 1,348,875 1.04
2,700,000 2,624,130 2.03
3,500,000 3,349,500 2.59
3,500,000 3,315,200 2.56

940,000 870,910 0.67
1,875,000 1,742,625 1.35
3,000,000 2,914,500 2.25
2,000,000 1,961,200 1.51
1,800,000 1,768,320 1.37

500,000 491,200 0.38
1,250,000 1,224,875 0.95
1,250,000 1,164,125 0.90
2,725,000 2,620,088 2.02

500,000 488,350 0.38
2,750,000 2,685,375 2.07
2,000,000 1,900,200 1.47
2,140,000 2,070,236 1.60
2,140,000 2,047,766 1.58
1,400,000 1,366,260 1.05
1,290,000 1,225,758 0.95
5,000,000 4,852,500 3.75
1,250,000 1,213,750 0.94

860,000 825,342 0.64
2,830,000 2,768,306 2.14

900,000 884,880 0.68
3,250,000 3,222,374 2.49
4,000,000 3,965,600 3.06
2,000,000 1,994,000 1.54
2,125,000 2,116,288 1.63
1,330,000 1,314,040 1.01
3,300,000 3,204,630 2.47
3,550,000 3,332,385 2.57
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2020 31 ( )

Sanders Re Il Ltd Series B FRN 07-Apr-23 3,700,000 3,395,120 2.62
Sanders Re Il Ltd Series B FRN 07-Apr-27 1,000,000 987,100 0.76
Sierra Ltd Series B FRN 28-Dec-23 720,000 714,168 0.55
Spectrum Cap Ltd FRN 08-Jun-21 1,000,000 984,300 0.76
Sutter Re Ltd Series F FRN 08-Jun-26 2,250,000 2,249,550 1.74
Tailwind Re Ltd 2017-1 FRN 08-Jan-22 500,000 489,350 0.38
Tailwind Re Ltd 2017-1 FRN 08-Jan-22 450,000 436,680 0.34
Tailwind Re Ltd 2017 1 B FRN 08-Jan-25 2,450,000 2,384,830 1.84
Torrey Pines Re FRN 09-Jun-20 4,000,000 3,999,600 3.09
Ursa Re Ltd C FRN 10-Dec-22 1,200,000 1,146,480 0.88
Ursa Re Ltd D FRN 24-Sep-21 1,200,000 1,159,440 0.89
- 96,474,400 93,669,981 72.33

Caelus Re VI Ltd FRN 07-Jun-27 2,800,000 2,687,720 2.07
Caelus Re VI Ltd FRN 07-Jun-27 1,700,000 1,642,710 1.27
Casablanca Re Ltd FRN 04-Jun-20 1,500,000 1,500,000 1.16
Casablanca Re Ltd B FRN 04-Jun-20 500,000 500,000 0.39
Residential Re 18 Ltd FRN 06-Dec-25 2,600,000 2,467,400 1.90
Residential Re 19 Ltd FRN 06-Jun-27 550,000 532,345 0.41
Residential Re 19 Ltd FRN 06-Jun-27 3,000,000 2,950,500 2.28
: 12,649,879 12,280,675 9.48

Hexagon Reinsurance Dac A FRN 17-Jan-25 250,000 274,166 0.21
Lion 11 Re Dac FRN 15-Jul-21 1,500,000 1,654,838 1.28
: 1,931,338 1,929,004 1.49

Manatee Re 111 Pte Ltd A FRN 07-Jun-22 900,000 858,870 0.66
Manatee Re 111 Pte Ltd B FRN 07-Jun-22 2,350,000 2,247,540 1.74
: 3,249,935 3,106,410 2.40

IBRD FRN 15-Mar-21 2,000,000 1,957,000 1.51

IBRD FRN 15-Mar-21 1,000,000 678,300 0.53
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2020 31 ( )

IBRD Series A FRN 02-Dec-22 500,000 495,450 0.38
IBRD Series B FRN 13-Jun-24 850,000 826,795 0.64
IBRD Series C FRN 13-Jul-24 1,450,000 1,374,745 1.06
IBRD Series D FRN 13-Jul-24 650,000 637,975 0.49
: 6,453,174 5,970,265 4.61

Atlas Capital UK 2018 FRN 09-Jun-25 500,000 480,900 0.37
Atlas Capital UK 2019 FRN 08-Jun-26 2,725,000 2,629,353 2.03
: 3,219,941 3,110,253 2.40

1 123,978,667 120,066,588 92.71
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Assets and Liabilities

May 31, 2020
Notes

Assets
Investments in Master Fund, fair value 23
Cash 2
Foreign currency cash (Cost: USD98,651) 2
Imterest receivable
Other assels
Total Assets
Liabilities
Interest payable
Fees payable 6

Total Liabilities
Net Assets

Net Asset Value (“NAV™) per unit - Class USD Units
(hased on Net Assets of USD55,438,885 and 546,450 units outstanding)

MNAV per unit - Class JPY Hedged Units
(hased on Net Assets of JPY4,124, 483,100 and 412,040 units outstanding)

Signed on behalf of the Trustee

ez Armallr Lonor. Curtin

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020
UsD

93,251,042
333,205
100,134

4
171,297

93,8

23
133,179

133,202

93,712,480

LUISD01.45

JPY 0,010

Date: 6™ Ociober 2020

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

8
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Operations

For the year ended May 31, 2020

Investment income
Interest income allocated from the Master Fund
Expenses allocated from the Master Fund
Met investment income allocated from the Master Fund

Fund interest income
Total fund income

Expenses

Interest expense

Administration fees

Manager fees

Investment Manager fees

Audit fees

Trustee fees

Distributor/Agent Company fees

Legal fees

Custodian fees

Other fees and expenses
Total fund expenses

MNet investment income

Net realized loss and change in unrealized depreciation
Realized loss:

Investments in securities, foreign currency transactions and
forward currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund
Investments in securities

Foreign currency transactions

Met realized loss

Change in unrealized depreciation:

Investments in securitics, foreign curreney transactions and forward
currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund

Foreign currency transactions

Net change in unrealized depreciation

Net realized loss and change in unrealized depreciation

Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

9
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2020
usD

8,806,614

(926,783)
7,879,831

6,486
6,486

23
12,034
25,992

364,120
17,728
10,028

624,332
28,570
11,070

100,554

1,194,451

6,691,866

(381,028)
21,390

(23.218)
(382,856)

(930,061)
830
(929,231)

(1,312,087)

5,379,779
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended May 31, 2020

Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations

Met investment income

Net realized loss on investments in securities, foreign currency
transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the Master
Fund

Wet realized gain on investments in securities

Met realized loss on foreign currency transactions

Wet unrealized depreciation on investments in securities, foreign
currency transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the
Master Fund

Met change in unrealized appreciation on foreign currency transactions

Met increase in Met Assets resulting from operations
Distributions to Unitholders:

Class USD Units
Class JPY Hedged Units

Capital Transactions

Units issued - Class USD Units (77,120 units)

Units issued - Class JPY Hedged Units (17,880 units)
Units redeemed - Class USD Units (156,310 units)

Units redeemed - Class JPY Hedged Units (25,700 units)

Met decrease in Net Assets resulting from capital transactions
Total decrease in Net Assets

Net Assets
Beginning of year

End of yvear

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

10
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2020
usp

6,601,866
(381,028)

21,390
(23,218)

(930,061)
830
5,379,779
(2.181.300)
(351,971)
(2,533,271
7,826,038
1,634,818
(15.739,151)
(2,347,225)
(8,625,520)

(5.779,012)

99,501,492

93,722,480
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended May 31, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Net increase in Met Assets resulting from operations

Adjustments to reconcile net increase in Net Assets resulting from
operations to net cash provided by operating activities:

Purchase of investments in the Master Fund

Sale of investments in the Master Fund

Net investment income allocated from the Master Fund

Net realized loss on investments in securities, foreign currency
transactions and forward eurrency contracts allocated from the Master
Fund

Net unrealized depreciation on investments in securities, foreign
currency transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from
the Master Fund

Change in assets and liabilities related to operations:
Drecrease in other assets

Decrease in interest receivable

Drecrease in interest payable

Drecrease in fees pavable

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows provided by financing activities
Proceeds from units issued

Paymenis for units redeemed

Distributions paid

Met cash used in financing activitics

Net change in cash and foreign currency cash
Cash and foreign currency cash at beginning of year

Cash and foreign currency cash at end of year

Supplementary information:
Interest received
Interest paid

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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5,379,779

(6,470,165)
18,367,767
(7,879,831)

381028

930,061

89,896
913
(87)

(83.442)

10,713,919

9,460,856
(18,086,376)

(2.533,271)
(11,158,791})

(444,872)
878,211

433,339

7,398
(109)
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Financial Highlights
For the year ended May 31, 2020
Class JPY
Class USD Hedged
Uniits Units
UsD JPY
Per Unit operating performance:
NAV per unit, beginning of year 98.86 9,737
Income from investment operations (B)
Net investment income 647 633
Met realized and change in unrealized loss (0.58) (290)
Total from investment operations 5.89 363
Distributions (3.30) (90)
MNAV per unit, end of vear 101.45 10,010
Total Return (A) 5.97% 3.73%
Ratios/supplemental data:
Ratio of expenses to average Net Assets (A)
Series Trust expenses (1.13%) (1.15%)
Allocated from the Master Fund
Operating expenses {0.89%) (0.90%)
Total expenses {2.04%) (2.05%)
Ratio of net investment income 1o average
Met Assets (A) £.42% B.59%5

{A) Total return is calculated based on the change in the NAV during the vear. Expense ratios
and net investment income ratios are caleulated based on the average Net Assets outstanding
throughout the period. The financial highlights are reflected after all investment-related and
operating expenses. Ratios between the two classes may vary due to class specific expenses.
The financial highlights are reflected after all investment-related and operating expenses,
including income and expenses allocated from the Master Fund,

(B) Results may vary based on the timing of capital transactions. Per unit information is
caleulated based upon the monthly average units outstanding during the year.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
May 31, 2020

Deseription of the Trust

NEK Premium CAT Bond Fund (the “Series Trust™) is a series trust of Offshore Strategy Fund,
an open-ended unit trust established by a master trust deed dated July 29, 2016 (the “Master
Trust Deed™), under the laws of the Cayman Islands, The Series Trust was constituted by a
supplemental trust deed (the “Supplemental Trust Deed™) dated October 17, 2018, under the
laws of the Cayman Islands. The Series Trust commenced operations on November 15, 2018,

Effective October 1, 2019, the previous Investment Manager merged into Franklin Templeton
Investments Japan Limited (the “Tnvestment Manager™). International Management Services
Ltd. {the “Manager™) serves as the Series Trust's Manager. SMT Fund Services (Ireland)
Limited {the “Administrator”) serves as the Series Trust’s Administrator.

The Series Trust™s strategy is consistent with the strategy of NK. CAT Bond Fund (the “Master
Fund™). The Series Trust’s investment objective is to seck to achieve risk adjusted absolute
retums by gaining exposure to the performance of insurance linked bonds (being CAT Bonds).
The Series Trust seeks to achieve this investment objective through investing in the Master
Fund. Accordingly, the Series Trust acts as a feeder fund into the Master Fund such that
substantially all of the proceeds from the sale of the Units will be invested in the Master Fund.
The Series Trust owns 72% of the Master Fund at May 31, 2020.

The Master Fund's financial statements are attached to and should be read in conjunction with
the Series Trust's financial statements.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, G.ALS, (Cayman)
Limited (the “Trustee™) is named as Trustee of the Serics Trust,

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited integrated their custody business into Sumitomo Mitsui
Trust Bank Limited, (London Branch) on March 2, 2020 following both UK and Japanese
regulatory approvals. Its ultimate parent which is Sumitome Mitsui Trust Holdings, Inc a
Japanese company quoted on the Tokyo Stock Exchange remains unchanged post the
integration.

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus disease 2019
(“COVID-19") a pandemic. Uncertainty remains around (i) the length of the disruption, and (ii)
the impact of the COVID-19 on global markets.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP™). The preparation
of financial statements in accordance with U8, GAAP requires the Series Trust’s management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results,
ineluding the ultimate amount realized upon the sale of fair valued investments, could differ
from those estimates and such differences may be significant.

13
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2020
(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of Preparation (continued)

The Series Trust is an investment company and accordingly follows the Investment Company
accounting and reporting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC")
946, Financial Services-Investment Companies,

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Series Trust in
preparing the financial statements:

Valuation of Investments
The following valuation policy is applied in determination of the value of the Series Trust's
investments:

The Series Trust invests solely in the Master Fund whose objective is 1o seek to achieve risk
adjusted absolute returns by investing in CAT Bonds. The Master Fund will seek 1o achieve its
investment objective by investing mainly in a global portfolio of CAT Bonds which will mainly
provide exposure to natural catastrophe events and other life and non-life insurance linked risk
including but not limited to life insurance, motor insurance, operational risk, and marine and
aviation and cyber risk.

CAT Bonds, although often listed or quoted on a securities exchange, are not ordinarily traded
or exchanged through such securities exchanges or at the price available on such securities
exchanges. Accordingly, CAT Bonds will be valued using indicative secondary market bid
prices provided by reputable brokers or other competent persons selected in good faith by the
Master Fund’s investment manager.

Investments in the Master Fund were valucd, as a practical expedient, utilizing the unaudited
net asset valuations provided by administrators, without adjustment, when the net asset
valuations of the investments are caleulated in a manner consistent with U.S. GAAP.

The Series Trust records its investment in the Master Fund at fair value, based on the NAV per
share as reported by the Master Fund, Valuation of financial instruments held by the Master
Fund are discussed in Note 2 in the Notes to the May 31, 2020 Financial Statements of the
Master Fund,

Investment Transactions and Investment Income

Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade-date basis (date the order to buy or sell is
executed). Gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined using the first in first out
cost method,

Interest income/expense on investments held/sold is accrued as earned/incurred. Interest earned
on the Series Trust’s brokerage account, if any, will be accrued monthly. Discounts and

premiums on Bonds are accreted/amortized to maturity on an effective yield basis and reported
as part of interest income in the Statement of Operations.

14
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2020
(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Expenses
Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as incurred.

Foreign Currency Translation

Itemns which are included in the Series Trust's financial statements, are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates (“the functional currency™),
this is United States Dollar (“USD™).

The Series Trust does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes
in foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in market
prices of securities held. Such fluctuations are included with the net realized and unrealized
gain or loss from investments,

Cash and Foreign Currency

The Trustee has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch) (formerly
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited) as its sub-custodian. Sumitomo Mitswi Trust Bank,
Limited {London Branch), has in turn, appointed Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. ("BBH") as
its global sub-custodian. Cash and foreign currency comprise cash with original maturities of 3
manths or less and are held at BBH as banker.

Income Taxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there are no income, withholding, capital gains
or other taxes payable by the Series Trust, In certain jurisdictions other than the Cayman Islands,
foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and interest received by the Series Trust,
Capital gains derived by the Series Trust in such jurisdictions gencrally will be exempt from
foreign income or withholding taxes at source. The Series Trust intends to conduct its affairs
such that it will not be subject o income tax in any jurisdiction. As a result, no provision for
income taxes has been made in the financial statements. Unitholders may be taxed on their
proportionate share of the Series Trust's tax basis income based on their individual
circumstances.

The Series Trust follows the authoritative guidance on accounting for and disclosure of
uncertginty in tax positions (FASB ASC 740), which requires management to determine
whether a tax position of the Series Trust is more likely than not to be sustained upon
examination by the applicable taxing authority, including resclution of any related appeals or
litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position.

For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized on the
financial statements is reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant taxing authority. The
Manager has determined that there is no effect on the financial statements being under this
authoritative guidance,
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2020
{Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Guarantees and/or Indemnifications

In the normal course of business the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enters into contracts
that contain a variety of representations, which provide general indemnifications. The Manager
maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown (although capped at the NAV of the
Series Trust), as this would involve future claims that may be made against the Manager that
have not vet occurred. However, based on experience, Manager expects the risk of loss to be
remode.

ASC 480

ASC 480, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both
Liabilities and Equity”, recognizes redemptions as liabilities, when the amount and number of
units requested in the redemption notice becomes fixed. This generally may occur at the lime
of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal period, depending on the nature of the
request. Redemptions payable may be treated as capital for purposes of allocations of
gains/(losses) pursuant to the Series Trust's governing documents. As at May 31, 2020, there
were no redemptions payable.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

ASC B20, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”, provides additional guidance for
estimating fair value in accordance with ASC 820 when the volume and level of activity for the
asset or liability have significantly decreased and provides guidance on identifying
circumstances that indicate a transaction is not orderly.

ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation technigues
used to measure fair value. The hicrarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted listed prices
in active markets for identical assets or lizbilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hicrarchy under ASC 820 are as follows:

= Level 1 = Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Series Trust has the ability to access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 = Inpuis other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either
directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

- Level 3 = Inputs that are unobservable,

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the
assumptions that market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions
about risk. A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Investment Manager
considers observable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly distributed
or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprictary and provided by independent sources that are
actively involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial instrument within the
hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily
correspond to the Investment Manager’s perceived risk of that instrument.

16

132/266



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573

Ooooooooooooooooooad

NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2020
(Continued)

3. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (continued)

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets are classified
within Level 1.

Cash and foreign currency are classified as Level 1 with all receivables and payables classified
as Level 2.

Investments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on
guoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by obscrvable
inputs are classified within Level 2. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded
in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on available market
information.

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade
infrequently or not at all.

The following table presents the investment in the Series Trust carried on the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities by level within the valuation hierarchy as of May 31, 2020:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Taotal
Aszets UsD UsD UsD uUsh
Investment in Master Fund - 93,251,042 - 83,251,042
Total = 93,251,042 - 93,251,042

There were no transfers between the levels during the year.

4. Unit Capital

Class JFY

Class USD Hedged

Units Units

Mumber of units outstanding at June 1, 2019 625,640 419,860
Units issued during the year 77120 17.880
Units redeemed during the vear (156,310} (25,700)
Number of units outstanding at May 31, 2020 546,450 412,040

One unitholder holds all of the Units atiributable to Class USD Units and Class JPY Hedged
Units.
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{Continued)
Unit Capital (continued)

Class USD Units were first issued at an initial issue price of USD100 per Unit. Class JPY
Hedged Units were first issued at an initial issue price of JPY 10,000 per Unit. The minimum
subscription amount per subseriber in respect of each class of unit is 100 units, and subscriptions
for more than 100 Units may only be made in ten Unit increments.

Subscription proceeds resulting from the issue of USD Units will be invested in the Class A
USD class of Master Fund Shares. Subscription proceeds resulting from the issue of JPY
Hedged Units will be invested in the Class A JPY (Hedged) class of Master Fund Shares.

For subsequent subscriptions by existing unitholders, the purchase price per unit will be the
NAV per Unit of the relevant class of units on the valuation day falling on the relevant
subseription day.

The subscription day for the Series Trust shall be the first and third valuation day of cach
calendar month and/or such other day or days that the Manager may from time to time
determing in respect of the Series Trust.

Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of Unitholders as at cach Repurchase Day.
The Repurchase Day for the Series Trust shall be the first and third Valuation of each calendar
month and/or such other day or days that the Manager may from time to time determine in
respect of the Series Trust.

The NAV per Unit is calculated by dividing the difference in value between the Series Trust’s
assets and liabilities (including accrued fees and expenses of the Series Trust) by the number
of Units outstanding. In the normal course of events, gains and losses associated with currency
class hedging will be for the benefit or detriment of holders of the applicable non-USD Master
Fund Shares only,

The Manager may declare and arrange for the payment of distributions in respect of any class
of units of such amount (iFany) as shall be determined by the Manager, after consultation with

the Investment Manager, and approved by the Trustee.

The ex-distribution date will be the valuation day which immediately follows the relevant
Distribution Record Date which is the second Friday of November in each year, providing that
if such day is not a Business Day then the immediately following Business Day and/or such
other date or dates as the Manager may determine in respect of any ¢lass of Units. For the vear
ended May 31, 2020, the Series Trust distributed USD2,181.300 in respect of Class USD Units
and USD351,971 in respect of Class JPY Hedged Units.
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5. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.
There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of
business. The Manager, Trustee and related companies (a company that controls or is controlled
by the Manager or the Trustee, often one that is in the same business group) are deemed to be
related to the Series Trust. Fees incurred with related parties during the period are disclosed in
the Statement of Operations. Amounts payable to related parties at the period end are disclosed
in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

The Investment Manager fee allocated from the Master Fund to the Series Trust as at May 31,
2020is USDT75,371.

SMBC Nikko Securities Inc., holds 100% of all units in issue in the Class USD and Class JPY
Hedged. As a result, any actions of SMBC Nikko Securities Inc. can materially impact the
Series Trust,

6. Fees and Expenses

Administration Fees
The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of USD12,000 per annum
of the MAY, accrued as of each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

The Administeator is also entitled to; (a) an establishment fee of USDS,000; (b) an annual fee
of USDI5,000 in connection with provision of assistance in connection to the preparation of the
financial statements of the Serics Trust; (¢) an annual fee of USD1,000 in connection with filing
the audited accounts of the Series Trust with the Cayman [slands Monetary Awthority; and (d)
an annual fee of USD,000 in connection with facilitating the Manager or its delegate in the
preparation of certain reports andfor statements required for Japanese regulatory purposes.

Manager Fees

The Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.025% per annum of the
MWAV, acerued and caleulated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears,

Investment Manager Fees

The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.35% per annum
of the MAV, accrued and calculated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears,
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6. Fees and Expenses (continued)

Trustee Fees
The Trustee receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of USDI0.000 per annum
accrued as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

Distributor/Agent Company Fees
The Distributor receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fec of 0.50% per annum of the
MNAV, accrued and calculated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears,

The Agent Company receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.10% per annum
af the MAV, accrued and calculated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears.

Custodian Fees

The Custodian is entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Series Trust, management and
transaction fees. The Custodian's safe keeping fees are USD750 per month, accrued on each
valuation day and payable monthly in arrears. The transaction fees will be at customary rates
as agreed between the Trustee and the Custodian.

The fees payable as at May 31, 2020 are as follows:

USsD

Administration fees 1,032
Manager fees 1,963
Investment Manager fees 27,709
Audit fees 17,326
Trustee fees a0
Distributor/Agent Company fees 47,626
Custodian fees 3,021
Other fees and expenses 33,642
133,179

7. Financial Risk Management

The Series Trust's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price
risk, interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liguidity risk.

Market Risk
All investments present a risk of loss of capital. The Investment Manager moderates this risk
through a careful selection of investments.

The value of the Series Trust's investments are affected by a number of factors, including but
not limited to, changes in the wider economy, financial and currency markets and foreign
currency exchange rates,
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Financial Risk Management (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

In a falling market environment, the value of the investments held by the Series Trust may
decline, and as a result, the NAY may decline below its initial principal amount. Also, adverse
developments in an issuer's economic conditions or such negative events as bankrupley may
cause the value of the equities to deeline substantially and may significantly impact the NAV.

Currency Risk

The Series Trust may hold monetary and non-monetary assets and incur monetary and non-
monetary liabilities denominated in currencies other than USD. It may therefore be exposed to
currency risk, as the value of the assets and liabilitics denominated in other currencies will
fluctuate due 1o changes in exchange rates.

If investing in the securities of companies that are denominated in non-USD currencies, the
Series Trust may be exposed to risks that the exchange rate of USD relative to other currencics
may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the reported value of those securities,

Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust would incur if the counterpartics
failed to perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Series Trust.

Although the Manager monitors the Custodian and believes it to be an appropriate custodian,
there is no guarantee that this or any custodian that the Series Trust may use from time to time,
will not become insolvent, the result of which could lead to losses for the Series Trust.

While there arc codes and acts to protect customer property in the event of a failure, insolvency
or liquidation of an institution, there is no certainty that, in the event of a failure of an institution
that has custody of Series Trust assets, the Series Trust would not incur losses due to ils assets
being unavailable for a period of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both,
Because all of the Series Trust's cash is in custody with a single institution, such losses could
be significant and could materially impair the ability of the Series Trust to achieve its
investment objective, The Series Trust is subject to credit risk to the extent that this institution
may he unable to fulfill its obligations to repay amounts owed,

Liguidity Risk
Investors should be aware that the value of units might fall as well as rise. Investment in the

Series Trust involves a degree of risk; there can be no assurance that the Series Trust's
investment objective will be achieved.
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(Continuwed)
Financial Risk Management (continued)

Liguidity Risk {continued)

Beginning in January 2020, global financial markets have experienced and may continuc to
experience significant volatility resulting from the spread of a novel coronavirus known as
COVID-19. The outbreak of COVID-19 has resulted in travel and border restrictions,
guarantines, supply chain disruptions, lower consumer demand and general market unceriainty,
The extent and duration of the impact of COVID-19 on global and local economies, financial
markets, and sectors and specific positions in which the Series Trust invests is uncertain at this
point and has the potential to continue to adversely affect the value of the Series Trust’s
portfolio and performance.

The Series Trust is exposed to repurchase of its units but management believes that the Series
Trust has sufficient resources to meet the present and foresecable needs of its business
aperations and, if necessary, the liquidity to fund repurchases and achieve a market position
appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position is monitored continually by
management to ensure that the Series Trust has the ability to meet its obligations.

The Series Trust may temporarily suspend the calculation of the NAY and therefore, the right
of redemptions and subscriptions of offered Units in exceptional circumstances, No issue or
redemption of Units will take place during any period when the caleulation of the NAV is
suspended.

Commitments and Contingencies
As at May 31, 2020, the Series Trust had no commitments or contingeneies.
Exchange rates used in this Report

The following exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into one USD as at
May 31, 2020:

Japanese Yen 107.73500
Recent Pronouncements

In January 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting
Standards Update 2016-01, Financial Instruments — Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition
and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (“ASU 2016-01"). The
improvement to the current ULS, GAAP primarily affects the accounting for equity investments,
financial liabilities under the fair value option, and the presentation and disclosure requirements
for financial instruments. In addition, the FASB clarified guidance related to the valuation
allowance assessment when recognising deferred tax assets resulting from unrealised losses on
available-for-sale debt securities, The accounting for other financial instruments, such as loans,
invesimenis in debt securities, and financial liabilities is largely unchanged. ASU 2016-01 is
effective in fiscal vears beginning after December 15, 2018 and for interim periods within fiscal
years beginning after December 13, 2019, Early application of the guidance in ASU 2016-01
is not permitted, with certain exceptions. This pronouncement does not have any significant
impact on the Series Trust's financial statements,
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Recent Pronouncements (continued)

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Swutement of Cash Flows (Topic 230):
Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments. The amendment is intended 1o
reduce diversity in practice in how certain transactions are classified in the statement of cash
flows, The issues addressed in the amendment are: debt prepayment or debt extinguishment
costs, settlement of zero-coupon debt instruments, contingent consideration payments made
after a business combination, proceeds from the settlement of insurance claims, proceeds from
the settlement of corporate-owned life insurance policies, including bank-owned life insurance
policies, distributions received from equity method investments, beneficial interests in
securitisation transactions; and, separately identifiable cash flows and application of the
predominance principle. The amendment is effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2018. This pronouncement does not have any significant impact on the Series Trust's
financial statements.

In Wovember 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230):
Restricted Cash. The amendments require that a statement of cash flows explain the change
during the period in the total of cash, cash equivalents, and amounts generally described as
restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. Therefore, amounts generally described as
restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash
equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end of period total amounts shown
on the statement of cash flows. The amendment does not provide a definition of restricted cash
or restricted cash equivalents. The amendment is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018, This pronouncement does not have any significant impact on the Secries
Trust's financial statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued the ASU 201813, Fair Value Measurements (Topic 820):
Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement.
The amendments in this update are issued as part of the FASB disclosure framework project.
The disclosure framework project’s objective and primary focus is to improve the effectiveness
of disclosures in the notes to financial statements by facilitating clear communication of the
information required under U.S. GAAP. The amendments in this update modify the disclosure
requirements on fair value measurements. Disclosure requirements for the amount of and
reasons for Level | and Level 11 transfers, the policy of timing of transfers between levels,
valuation process for Level 111 fair value measurements and the changes in unrealised gains and
losses for Level 11 investments held at the end of the reporting period have been removed. In
liew of a roll forward for Level I fair value measurements, diselosure is required regarding
transfers into and out of Level 111 of the fair value hicrarchy and purchases and issues of Level
111 assets and liabilities. ASU 2018-13 also amends disclosure requirements for the Level 111
reconciliation for non-public entities. The guidance is effective for financial statements with
fiscal vears beginning on or after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted. The Series
Trust has adopted the provisions of ASU 2018-13 for the year ending May 31, 2020,
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11. Subsequent Events

Management performed a subseguent events review up to October 6, 2020, which is the date
the financial statements were available to be issued.

Effective June 1, 2020 through to October &, 2020 investors subscribed USD1,385,181 in
respect of Class USD Units and USDNil in respect of Class JPY Hedged Units into the Series
Trust and investors redeemed USD4,237.813 in respect of Class USD Units and
USD17,147,615 in respect of Class JPY Hedged Units from the Series Trust.

Management concluded that there were no other subsequent events which required additional
disclosure in these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved on October 6, 2020,
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Fair
Nominal Value % of
Investment in the Master Fund Holding UsD NAV
Cayman Islands
NK CAT Bond Fund Class A JPY (Hedged)
IPY Shares 407,110 38,842,452 41.45
UsD MK CAT Bond Fund Class A USD Shares 509,444 54,408,590 58.05
Total Investment in the Master Fund
(Cost: USDS7,036,479) 93,251,042 99,50
Symbol Currency Country
JPY Japanese Yen Japan
UsD L5, Dollar United States

The accompanying notes form an imtegral part of these financial statements.
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Fair

Mominal Value %o of
CAT Bonds Holding UsD NAY
Bermuda
Alamo Re Lid Series A FRN 07-Jun-24 2,000,000 1,983,000 1.53
Alamo Re Lid Series A FRN 03-Jun-26 1,000,000 981,600 0.76
Bowline Re Lid 2018 Series A FEN 23-May-22 3,000,000 2,922,000 2.26
Bowline Re Ltd 2019 FRN 20-Mar-26 1,750,000 1,733,550 1.34
Cape Lookout Re Ltd FRN 25-Feb-22 1,250,000 1,229,625 0,95
Cape Lookout Re Ltd FRN 09-May-22 1,375,000 1,348,875 1.04
Everglades Re 1T Ltd FRM 04-May-21 2,700,000 2,624,130 2.03
Floods-Mar-t Re Lrd 2018 1 A FRN 06-Aug-21 3,500,000 3,349 500 2.59
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd 0.5% 07-Mar-22 3,500,000 3,315,200 2.56
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd A FEN 27-Feb-26 40,000 £70,910 0.67
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd B FRN 27-Feb-26 1,875,000 1,742,625 1.35
Galileo Re Ltd Series A FRN 06-Mov-20 3,000,000 2,914,500 225
Galileo Re Lid Series A FRN 08-Jan-27 2,000,000 1,961,200 1.51
Galileo Re Ltd Series C FRN 08-Jan-27 1,800,000 1,768,320 1.37
Galileo Re Lid Series D FRN 08-Jan-27 500,000 491,200 (.38
Integrity Re I1 Ltd Series A FRN 12-Apr-28 1,250,000 1,224,875 0.95
Kilimanjaro Re Ltd 2018 1 Al FRN 06-May-22 1,250,000 1,164,125 0.90
Kilimanjaro Re Ltd 2018 1 FRN 05-May-26 2,725,000 2,620,088 2.02
Kilimanjaro Il Re Ltd Al FRMN 20-Apr-21 500,000 488,350 0.38
Kilimanjaro Il Re Ltd FRN 20-Apr-21 2,750,000 2,685,375 2.07
Kilimanjaro Il Re Ltd FRN 21-Apr-22 2,000,000 1,900,200 1.47
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Lid Series A FRN 19-Dee-23 2,140,000 2,070,236 1.60
Kilimanjaro [II Re Ltd Series A FRN 19-Dec-24 2,140,000 2,047,766 1.58
Kilimanjaro III Re Ltd Series B FRN 19-Dec-23 1,400,000 1,366,260 1.05
Kilimanjaro Il Re Ltd Series B FRN 19-Dec-24 1,290,000 1,225,758 0.95
Manatee Re Ltd 11 Series B FRN 07-Jun-21 5,000,000 4,852,500 1.75
Manatee Re Ltd 11 FRN 09-Jun-25 1,250,000 1,213,750 0.94
Matterhom Re Ltd Series A FEN 07-Dec-23 860,000 825,342 0.64
Matterhom Re Lid Series B FEN 07-Dec-23 2,830,000 2,768,306 214
Matterhomn Re Ltd Series B FRN 07-Dec-23 900,000 884,880 0.68
Mona Lisa Re Ltd Series A FRN 09-Jan-23 3,250,000 3222374 249
Mona Lisa Re Ltd Series B FRN 09-Jan-23 4,000,000 3,965,600 3.06
Morthshore Re 11 Ltd FRN 06-Jul-20 2,004,000 1,994,000 1.54
Morthshore Re 11 Lid 18 1 A FRN 08-Jul-22 2,125,000 2,116,288 1.63
Morthshore Re 11 Ltd FRN 07-Jul-26 1,330,000 1,314,040 1.01
Riverfront Re Lid Series B FRN 13-Jan-21 3,300,000 3,204,630 247
Sanders Re Ltd FRM 07-Apr-22 3,550,000 3,332,385 2.57
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Fair

Nominal Value % of
CAT Bonds (continued) Holding UsD NAY
Bermuda (continued)
Sanders Re 11 Ltd Serics B FRN 07-Apr-23 3,700,000 3,395,120 2.62
Sanders Re IT Ltd Series B FRN 07-Apr-27 1,000,000 987,100 0.76
Sierra Lid Series B FRN 28-Dec-23 T 200, (b0 714,168 0.55
Spectrum Cap Ltd FRN 08-Jun-21 1,000,000 Q984,300 0.76
Sutter Re Ltd Series F FRN 08-Jun-26 2,250,000 2,249,550 1.74
Tailwind Re Ltd 2017-1 FRN 08-Jan-22 500,000 489,350 0.38
Tailwind Re Ltd 2017-1 FRN 08-Jan-22 450,000 436,680 0.34
Tailwind Re Ltd 2017 1 B FRN 08-Jan-25 2,450,000 2,384,830 1.84
Tomey Pines Be FRN 09-Jun-20 4,000,000 3,999,600 3.00
Ursa Re Ltd C FRN 10-Dec-22 1,200,000 1,146,480 0.8%
Ursa Re Ltd D FRN 24-Sep-21 1,200,000 1,159,440 (.89
Total Bermuda (Cost: USD96,474,400) 93,669,981 7233
Cayman Islands
Caelus Re VI Lid FRM 07-Jun-27 2,300,000 2,687,720 2.07
Caelus Re VI Ltd FRMN 07-Jun-27 1,700,000 1,642,710 1.27
Casablanca Re Lid FRN 04-Jun-20 1,500,000 1,500,000 1.16
Casablanca Re Lid B FRN (4-Jun-20 500,000 500,000 0.39
Residential Re 18 Lid FRM 0&-Dec-25 2.600,000 2467400 1.90
Residential Re 19 Lid FRN 06-Jun-27 550,000 532,345 .41
Residential Re 19 Ltd FRN 06-Jun-27 3,000,000 2,930,500 2.28
Total Cayman Islands (Cost: USD12,649,879) 12,280,675 9.48
Ireland
Hexagon Reinsurance Dac A FRN 17-Jan-25 250,000 274,166 0.21
Lion Il Re Dac FRN 15-Jul-21 1,500,000 1,654,838 1.28
Total Ireland (Cost: USDHM,931,335) 1,929,004 1.49
Singapore
Manatee Re 111 Pte Lid A FRN 07-Jun-22 900,000 B58,870 0.66
Manatee Re 11T Pte Ltd B FRN 07-Jun-22 2,350,000 2247540 1.74
Total Singapore (Cost: USD3,249,935) 3,106,410 240
Supranational
IBRD FRM 15-Mar-21 2,000,000 1,957,000 1.51
IBRD FRM 15-Mar-21 1,000,000 678,300 0n.53
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Fair

Nominal Value %o of
CAT Bonds (continued) Holding USD NAY
Supranational (continued)
IBRD Series A FRN 02-Dec-22 300,000 495450 0.38
IBRD Scries B FRN 13-Jun-24 230,000 826,795 0.64
IBRID Series C FRN 13-Tul-24 1,450,000 1,374,745 1.06
IBRD Series D FREN 13-Jul-24 650,000 637,975 0.4%
Total Supranational (Cost: USD6,453,174) 5,970,265 4.61
United Kingdom
Atlas Capital UK 2018 FRN 09-Jun-25 S00,000 480,900 0.37
Atlas Capital UK 2019 FRN 08-Jun-26 2,725,000 2,629,353 2.03
Total United Kingdom (Cost: USD3,219,941) 3,110,253 240
Total CAT Bonds (Cost: USD123,978,667) 120,066,588 92.71

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2019 31
2019 31
2019
97,941,227 2,3 98,579,902 10,429,754
2 810,191 85,718
67,365 2 68,020 7,197
917 97
261,193 27,634
99,720,223 10,550,400
110 12
6 218,621 23,130
218,731 23,142
99,501,492 10,527,258
NAV
61,848,162

625,640 98.86 10,459

4,088,210,333

419,860 9,737
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2018 11 15 2019 31
2019
3,386,544 358,296
5 (439,049) (46,451)
2,947,495 311,845
4,497 476
4,497 476
923 98
6,477 685
11,884 1,257
166,369 17,602
16,994 1,798
5,398 571
285,205 30,175
13,185 1,395
6,820 722
59,257 6,269
572,512 60,572
2,379,480 251,749
(117,637) (12,446)
(43,685) (4,622)
77,887 8,240
(83,435) (8,827)
(2,191,183) (231,827)
653 69
(2,190,530) (231,758)
(2,273,965) (240,585)
105,515 11,163
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2019 31
2019
2,379,480 251,749
(117,637) (12,446)
(43,685) (4,622)
77,887 8,240
(2,191,183) (231,827)
653 69
105,515 11,163
627,640 62,521,153 6,614,738
419,860
37,074,204 3,922,451
2,000 (199,380) (21,094)
99,395,977 10,516,094
99,501,492 10,527,258

99,501,492 10,527,258
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2019 31
2019
105,515 11,163
(97,941,227) (10,362,182
(2,947,495) (311,845)
117,637 12,446
2,191,183 231,827
(261,193) (27,634)
(917) (97)
110 12
218,621 23,130
(98,517,766)  (10,423,180)
99,595,357 10,537,189
(199,380) (21,094)
99,395,977 10,516,094
878,211 92,915
878,211 92,915
3,581 379
(814) (86)
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2018 11 15 2019 31
NAV 100.00 10,000
B
2.67 262
(3.81) (525)
(1.14) (263)
NAV 98.86 9,737
A (1.14%) (2.63%)
A
(1.20%) (1.18%)
(0.93%) (0.91%)
(2.13%) (2.09%)
A 7.15% 7.04%

NAV
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2016 29

2018 10 17
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2019 31 76
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2019 31

98,579,902 98,579,902

98,579,902 98,579,902
2018 11 15

627,640 419,860

(2,000)
2019 31 625,640 419,860
100
10,000

100 100 10
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2019 31

2019 31
349,147

100
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12,000

5,000
5,000
1,000

1,000

0.025
0.35
10,000
0.50
0.10
750
2019 31
2019
1,151
2,390
33,457
16,994

959
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103,196
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Assets and Liabilities

May 31, 2019
M9

Maotes UsD
Asseis
Investments in Master Fund, fair value (Cost: USD97.941,227) 23 08,579,902
Cash 2 510,191
Foreign currency cash (Cost: USDG7.365) 2 68,020
Interest receivable 917
Other assets 261,193
Total Assets 09,720,223
Liabilities
[nterest payable 110
Fees payable 6 218621
Total Liabilitles 218.731
Met Assels 99,501,492
Met Asset Value (“NAV™) per unit - Class USD Units
{based on Nel Assets of USD61,848,162 and 625,640 units outstanding) USD9R.86
Met Asset Value per unit - Class JPY Hedged Units
{based on Met Asscis of JPY4,088,210,333 and 419,860 units outstandingz) IPY9,737

Sipned on behalf of the Trustee

( e (Gt

Date: QL S@ﬂl‘%ﬁ“bﬂ" 2uld

The accompanying notes form an inlegral part of these financial statements.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Operations
For the period from November 15, 2018 (commencement of operations)
to May 31, 2019
2019
Notes UsD
Investment income
Interest income allocated from the Master Fund 3,386,544
Expenses allocated from the Master Fund 5 (439,049)
Net investment income allocated from the master Fund 2,947,495
Fund interest income 4,497
Total Fund income 4 497
Expenses
Interest expense 923
Administration fees 6,477
Manager fiees 11,884
Investment Manager fees 166,369
Audit fees 16,994
Trustee fees 5,398
Distributor/Agent Company fees 285205
Legal fees 13,185
Custodian fees 6,820
Other fees and expenscs 59,257
Total fund expenses 572512
Net investment income 2,379,480
Net realized loss and change in unrealized depreciation
Realized loss:
Investments in securities, foreign currency transactions and
forward currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund (117.637)
Investments in scouritics {43,685)
Foreign currency transactions 77.887
Met realized loss {#3,435)
Change in unrealized depreciation:
Investments in securities, foreign currency transactions and forward
currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund {2,191,183)
Foreign currency transactions 633
Met change in unrealized depreciation (2.190,530)
Net realized loss and change in unrealized depreciation (2,273,965)
Net increase in Net Assefs resulting from operations 105,515

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the period from November 15, 2018 (commencement of operations)

to May 31, 2019

Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations

Net investment income

Met realized loss on investments in securitics, foreign currency
transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the Master
Fund

Met realized loss on investments in securitics

Met realized gain on foreign currency transactions

Met wnrealized depreciation on investments in securitics, foreign
currency transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the
Master Fund

Met change in unrealized appreciation on foreign currency transactions

Met increase in Net Assets resulting from operations
Capital Transactions
Units issued - Class USD Units (627,640 units)

Units issued - Clags JPY Hedged Units (419,860 units)
Units redeemed - Class USD Units (2,000 units}

Met increase in Met Assets resulting from capital transactions
Total increase in Net Assets

Net Assets
Beginning of period

End of period

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Cash Flows
For the period from November 15, 2018 (commencement of operations)

to May 31, 2019
2019
UsD
Cash flows from operating activities
Net increase in Met Assets resulting from operations 105,515
Adjustments to reconcile net increase in Met Assets resulting from
operations to net cash vsed in operating aclivities:
Purchase of investments in the Master Fund (97,941,227)
Met investment income allocated from the Master Fund (2,947,495)

Met realized loss on investments in securities, foreign currency
transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the Master
Fund 117,637
Met unrealized depreciation on investments in securities, foreign
currency transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from

the Master Fund 2,191,183
Change in assets and liabilities related to operations:

Increase in other assets (261,193)
Increase in interest receivable {917
Increase in interest payable 110
Increase in fees payable 218,621
Met cash used in operating activities (98,517,766)
Cash flows provided by financing activities

Proceeds from units issued 99,595,357
Payments for units redeemed (199.380)
Met cash provided by financing activities 99,393,977
Met change in cash and foreign currency cash 878,211
Cash and foreign cumency cash at beginning of period _ -
Cash and foreign currency cash at end of period 878,211
Supplementary information:

Interest received 3,581
Interest paid (814)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
11
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Financial Highlights
For the period from November 15, 2018 (commencement of operations)
to May 31, 2019
Class JPY
Class USD Hedged
Units Units
UsDh JPY
Per Unit aperating performance:
MNAV per unit, beginning of period 100.00 10,000
Income from investment operations (B)
Met investment income 2.67 262
Met realized and change in unrealized loss {3.81) (325)
Total from investment operations (1.14) {263}
MNAV per unit, end of period 98.86 9,737
Total Return (A) (1.14%6) _ {2.63%)
Ratips/supplemental data:
Ratio of expenses to average MNet Assels (A)
Series Trust expenses (1.20%) (1.18%%)
Allocated from the Master Fund
Operating expenses (0.93%) (0.91%)
Total expenses (2.13%) _12.09%)
Ratio of net investment income 1o average
Met Assets (A) 7.15% 7.04%

{A) Total return is calculated based on the change in the NAV during the period. Expense ratios
and net investment income ratios are calculated based on the average Net Assets outstanding
throughout the period, The financial highlights are reflected after all investment-related and
operating expenses. The ratios have been annualized where appropriate. Ratios between the
two classes may vary due to class specific expenses. The financial highlights are reflected after
all investment-related and operating expenses, including income and expenses allocated from
the Master Fund.

{B) Results may vary based on the timing of capital transactions. Per unit information is
calculated based upon the monthly average units outstanding during the period.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
12
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
May 31, 2019

1. DPescription of the Trust

NEK Premium CAT Bond Fund (the “Series Trust™) is a series trust of Offshore Strategy Fund,
an open-ended unit trust established by a master trust deed dated July 29, 2016 (the “Master
Trust Deed™), under the laws of the Cayman Islands. The Series Trust was constituted by a
supplemental trust deed (the “Supplemental Trust Deed™) dated October 17, 2018, under the
laws of the Cayman Islands. The Senes Trust commenced operations on November 15, 2018.

International Management Services Lid. (the “Manager™) serves ag the Series Trust's manager.
The Serics Trust’s asscts are managed on a day to day basis by K2 Advisors Japan Lid. (the
“Investment Manager"). SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited {the “Administrator™) serves as
the Series Trust's administrator.

The Series Trust's strategy is consistent with the strategy of the Master Fund. The Serics Trust's
investment objective is to seek to achieve risk adjusted absolute returns by gaining exposure to
the performance of insurance linked bonds (being CAT Bonds). The Series Trust seeks to
achieve this investment objective through investing in NK CAT Bond Fund (the “Master
Fund”). Accordingly, the Series Trust acts as a feeder fund into the Master Fund such that
substantially all of the proceeds from the sale of the Units will be invested in the Master Fund.
The Series Trust owns 76% of the Master Fund at May 31, 2019,

The Master Fund's financial statements are attached (o and should be read in conjunction with
the Series Trust's financial statements.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, G.ALS. (Cayman)
Limited (the “Trustee™) is named as trustee of the Series Trust.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“11.8. GAAP™). The preparation
of financial statements in accordance with U_S. GAAP requires the Series Trust’s management
o make estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assets and lisbilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilitics at the date of the financial staternents and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results,
including the ultimate amount realized upon the sale of fair valued investments, could differ
from those estimates and such differences may be significant.

The Series Trust is an investment company and accordingly follows the Investment Company

accounting and reporting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Codification {(“ASC™)
046, Financial Services-Investment Companies.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2019
(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Series Trust in
preparing the financial statements;

Valuation of Investments
The following valuation policy is applied in determination of the value of the Series Trast's
mvestments:

The Series Trust invests solely in the Master Fund whose objective is (o seek to achieve risk
adjusted absolute retums by investing in CAT Bonds. The Master Fund wall seek to achieve its
investment objective by imvesting mainly in a global portfelioc of CAT Bonds which will mainly
provide exposure to natural catastrophe events and other life and non-life insurance linked risk
including but not limited to life insurance, motor insurance, operational risk, and marine and
aviation and cyber risk.

CAT Bonds, although often listed or quoted on a securities exchange, are not ordinarily traded
or exchanged through such securities exchanges or at the price available on such securitics
exchanges. Accordingly, CAT Bonds will be valued using indicative secondary market bid
prices provided by reputable brokers or other competent persons sclected in good faith by the
Master Fund’s investment manager,

Investments in the Master Fund were valued, as a practical expedient, utilizing the net asset
valuations provided by administrators, without adjustment, when the net asset valuations of the
investments are calculated in a manner consistent with US GAAP.

The Series Trust records its investment in the Master Fund at fair value, based on the Net Asset
Value per share as reported by the Master Fund. Valuation of financial instruments held by the
Master Fund are discussed in Note 2 in the Notes to the May 31, 2019 Financial Statements of
the Master Fund.

Investment Transactions and Investment Income

Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade-date basis (date the order to buy or sell is
executed). Gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined using the first in first out
cost method,

Interest income/expense on investments held/sold is accrued as eamed/incurred. Interest camed
on the Series Trust's brokerage account, if any, will be accrued monthly. Discounts and
premiums on Bonds are acereted/amortized to maturity on an effective yield basis and reported
as part of interest income in the Statement of Operations.

Expenses
Expenses are recorded on an acervals basis as incurred.

14
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2019
{Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign Currency Translation

ltems which are included in the Series Trust’s financial statements, are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates (“the Functional
Currency™), this is United States Dollar (“TUJSD™).

The Series Trust does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes
in foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in market
prices of securities held, Such fluctuations are included with the net realized and unrealized
gain or loss from investments.

Cash and Foreign Currency

The Trustee has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited as its Cusiodian, Sumitomo
Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited, have in turn, appeinted Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. ("BBH™)
as their sub-custodian. Cash and Foreign Currency comprise cash with original maturities of 3
months or less and are held at BRH as banker.

Income Taxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman [slands, there are no income, withholding, capital gains
or other taxes payable by the Series Trust. In certain jurisdictions other than the Cayman Islands,
foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and interest received by the Series Trust
Capital gains derived by the Series Trust in such jurisdictions generally will be exempt from
foreign income or withholding taxes at source. The Series Trust intends to conduet its affairs
such that it will not be subject to income tax in any jurisdiction. As a result, no provision for
income taxes has been made in the financial statements. Unitholders may be taxed on their
proportionate share of the Series Trust’s tax basis income based on their individual
circumstances.

The Series Trust follows the authoritative puidance on accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions (FASE Accounting Standards Codification 740), which requires
management to determine whether a tax position of the Series Trust is more likely than not to
be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority, including resolution of any
related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position.

For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized on the
financial statements is reduced by the largest benefit that has a preater than fifty percent
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate setilement with the relevant taxing authority. The
Manager has determined that there is no effect on the financial statements being under this
anthoritative guidance.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2019
{Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Guarantees and/or Indemnifications

In the normal course of business the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enters into contracts
that contain a variety of representations, which provide general indemnifications. The Manager
maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown {although capped at the Net Asset
Value of the Series Trust), 8s thizs would involve future claims that may be made against the
Manager that have not yet occurred. However, based on experience, Manaper expects the risk
of loss to be remote.

ASC 480

ASC 480, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both
Liabilitics and Equity™, recognizes redemptions as liabilities, when the amount and number of
units requested in the redemption notice becomes fixed, This generally may occur at the time
of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal period, depending on the nature of the
request. Redemptions pavable may be treated as capital for purposes of allocations of
gainsf{losses) pursvant to the Series Trust’s goveming documents, As at May 31, 2019, there
were no redemptions payable.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosores

ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”, provides additional guidance for
estimating fair value in accordance with ASC 820 when the volume and level of activity for the
asset or lability have significantly decreased and provides guidance on identifving
circumstances that indicate a transaction 1s not orderly.

ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value. The hicrarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted listed prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hicrarchy under ASC 820 are as follows:

- Level 1 — Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilitics that the Series Trust has the ability to access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either
directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

= Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable.

Inputs are used in applying the wvarious valuation techmiques and broadly refer to the
assumptions that market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions
about risk. A financial instrument’s Jevel within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Investment Manager
considers ohservable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly distributed
or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary and provided by independent sources that are
aetively invalved in the relevant market. The eategorization of a financial instrument within the
hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily
correspond 1o the Investment Manager's perceived risk of that instrument.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2019
(Continued)

3. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures {continued)

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets are classified
within Level 1.

Cash and foreign currency are classified as Level 1 with all receivables and payables classified
as Level 2.

Investments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on
quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable
inputs are classified within Level 2. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded
in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally based om available market
information.

Investments classified within Level 3 have sipnificant unobservable inputs, as they trade
infrequently or not at all.

The following table presents the investment in the Series Trust carried on the Statement of
Assels and Liabilities by level within the valuation hierarchy as of May 31, 2019

Level 1 Level?  Level3 Total
Assets UsD UsD UsDh UsD
Investment in Master Fund - 98,579,902 - 98579502
Total - 98579902 - 98,579,902

There were no transfers between the levels during the period.

4. Unit Capital

Class JPY

Class USD Hedged

Units Units

Number of units outstanding at November 15, 2018 . =
Units issped during the period 627,640 419,860
Units redeemed during the period (2,000) -
Number of units outstanding at May 31, 2019 625,640 419,860

One unitholder holds all of the Units attributable to Class USD Units and Class JPY Hedged
Units.

17

170/266



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2019
(Continued)

4. Unit Capital {continued)

Class USD Units were first issued at an initial issue price of USD100 per Unit, Class JPY
Hedged Units were first issued at an initial issue price of JPY 10,000 per Unil. The minimum
subscription amount per subscriber in respect of each class of unit is 100 units, and subscriptions
for more than 100 Units may only be made in ten Unit increments.

Subscription proceeds resulting from the issue of USD Units will be invested in the Class A
USD class of Master Fund Shares. Subseription proceeds resulting from the issue of JPY
Hedged Units will be invested in the Class A JPY {(Hedped) class of Master Fund Shares,

For subsequent subscriptions by existing unitholders, the purchase price per unit will be the
MAY per Unit of the relevant ¢lass of units on the valuation day falling on the relevant
subseription day.

The subscription day for the Series Trust shall be the first and third valuation day of each
calendar month and/or such other day or days that the Manager may from time to time
determing in respect of the Series Trust.

Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of Unitholders as at each Repurchase Day.
The Repurchase Day for the Series Trust shall be the first and third Valuation of each calendar
month andfor such other day or days that the Manager may from time to time determine in
respect of the Series Trust.

The NAV per Unit is calculated by dividing the difference in value between the Series Trust's
assets and liabilities (including accrued fees and expenses of the Series Trust) by the number
of Units outstanding. In the normal course of events, gains and losses associated with currency
class hedging will be for the benefit or detriment of holders of the applicable non-USD Master
Fund Shares only.

The Manager may declare and arrange for the payment of distributions in respect of any class
of units of such amount (if any) as shall be determined by the Manager, after consultation with
the Investment Manager, and approved by the Trustee,

The ex-distribution date will be the valuation day which immediately follows the relevant
Distribution Record Date which is the second Friday of November in each year, providing that
if such day is not a Business Day then the immediately following Business Day and/or such
other date or dates as the Manager may determine in respect of any class of Units. No
distributions were made during the period ended May 31, 2019,
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2019
(Continued)

5. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.
There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of
business, The Manager, Trustee and related companies (a company that contrals or is controlled
by International Management Services Ltd. or G.A.S. {Cayman) Limited, ofien one that is in
the same business group) are deemed to be related to the Series Trust. Fees incurred with related
parties during the period are disclosed in the Statement of Operations. Amounts payable to
related parties at the period end are disclosed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities,

The Investment Manager fee allocated from the Master Fund to the Series Trust as at May 31,
2019 is USD349,147.

SMBC Nikko Securities Inc., holds 100% of all units in issue in the Class USD and Class JPY
Hedged. As a result, any actions of SMBC Nikko Securities Inc. can materially impact the
Series Trust,

A Director of the Master Fund, is also an employee of Hameys Fiduciary (Cayman) Limited,
the registered office of the Master Fund,

A Director of the Master Fund, is also an employee of K2 Advisors Japan Lid, the Investment
Manager.

6. Fees and Expenses

Administration Fees
The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of USD 12,000 per annum
of the WAV, accrued as of each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

The Administrator is also entitled to; (&) an cstablishment fee of USDS,000; (b) an annual fee
of 1USD5,000 in connection with provision of assistance in connection to the preparation of the
financial statements of the Series Trust; (¢} an annual fee of USD1,000 in connection with filing
the audited accounts of the Series Trust with the Cayman [slands Monetary Authority; and (d)
an annual fee of USD,000 in connection with facilitating the Manager or its delegate in the
preparation of certain reports and/or statements requined for Japanese regulatory purposes,

Manager Fees
The Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.025% per annum of the
NAV, acerued and calculated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears,

Investment Manager Fees
The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.35% per annum
of the NAV, accrued and caleulated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2019
(Contimued)

6. Fees and Expenses (continued)

Trustee Fees
The Trustee receives outl of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of USDI0,000 per annum
accrued as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

Distributor/Agent Company Fees
The Distributor receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.50% per annum of the
MNAV, accrued and calculated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears.

The Agent Company receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.10% per annum
of the NAV, accrued and calculated on each valeation day and paid monthly in arrears.

Custodian Fees

The Custodian is entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Series Trust, management and
transaction fees. The Custodian’s safe keeping fees are USD7T30 per month, accrued on each
valuation day and payable monthly in arrears. The transaction fees will be at customary rates
as agreed berween the Trustee and the Custodian.

The fees payable as at May 31, 2019 are as follows:

2019

Usp

Administration fees 1,151
Manager fees 2,390
Investment Manager fees 33,457
Audit fees 16,994
Trustee fees 959
Distributor/Agent Company fees 57,356
Custodian fees 3,118
Other fees and expenses 103,196
218,621

7. Financial Risk Management

The Series Trust's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price
risk, interest rate risk and currency risk), eredit risk and liguidity risk.

Market Risk

All investments present a risk of loss of capital. The Investment Manager moderates this risk
through a careful selection of investments,

The value of the Series Trust's investments are affected by a number of factors, including but

not limited to, changes in the wider economy, financial and currency markets and foreign
currency exchange rates.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2019
(Comtinued)

7. Finaneial Risk Management (econtinued)

Market Risk (continued)

In a falling market environment, the value of the investments held by the Series Trust may
decline, and as a result, the NAV may decline below its initial principal amount. Also, adverse
developments in an issuer's economic conditions or such negative events as bankruptey may
cause the value of the equities to decline substantially and may significantly impact the NAV.

Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust would incur if the counterparties
failed to perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Series Trust,

Although the Manager menitors the Custoedian and believes it to be an appropriate custodian,
there is no puarantee that this or any custodian that the Series Trust may use from time to time,
will not become insolvent, the result of which could lead to losses for the Series Trust.

While there are codes and acts to protect customer property in the event of a failure, insolvency
or liquidation of an institution, there is no certainty that, in the event of a failure of an institution
that has custody of Series Trust assets, the Series Trust would not incur losses due to its assels
heing unavailable for a period of time, ultimately less than full recovery of ils assets, or both.
Because all of the Series Trust’s cash is in custody with a single institution, such losses could
be significant and could materially impair the ability of the Series Trust o achieve its
investment objective. The Series Trust is subjeet to credit risk to the extent that this institution
may be unable to fulfill its obligations to repay amounts owed,

Liguidity Risk

Investors should be aware that the value of units might fall as well as rise. Investment in the
Series Trust involves a degree of risk; there can be no assurance that the Series Trust's
investment objective will be achieved,

The Series Trust is exposed to repurchase of s units but management believes that the Series
Trust has sufficient resources to meet the present and forescesble nceds of its business
operations and, if necessary, the liguidity to fund repurchases and achieve a market position
appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position is monitored continually by
management to ensure that the Series Trust has the ability to meet itz obligations.

Currency Risk

The Series Trust may hold monetary and non-monetary assets and incur monetary and non-
monetary liabilities denominated in eurrencies other than USD. It may therefore be exposed to
currency risk, as the value of the assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies will
fluctuate dee to changes in exchange rates.

If investing in the securities of companies that are denominated in non-USD currencies, the
Series Trust may be exposed to risks that the exchange rate of USD relative to other currencies
may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the reported value of those securities.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2019
(Continued)

8. Commitments and Contingencies
As at May 31, 2019, the Series Trust had no commilments or conlingencies.
9. Exchange rates used in this Report

The following exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into one USD as at
May 31, 2019:

2019
Japanese Yen 10857500

16, Recent Pronouncements

In Jamuary 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued Accounting
Standards Update 2016-01, Financial Instruments — Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition
and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (“ASU 2016-017). The
improvement Lo the current US GAAP primarily affects the accounting for equity investments,
financial liabilities under the fair value option, and the presentation and disclosure requirements
for financial instrumenis. In addition, the FASB clarified guidance related to the valuation
allowance assessment when recognising deferred tax assets resulting from wnrealised losses on
available-for-sale debt securities. The accounting for other financial instruments, such as loans,
investments in debt securities, and financial liabilities is largely unchanged. ASU 2016-01 is
effective in fiscal vears beginning after December 15, 2018 and for interim periods within fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2019, Early application of the guidance in ASU 2016-01
is nol permitted, with certain exceptions. This pronouncement does notl have any significant
impact on the Series Trust's financial statements,

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASLI 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230):
Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payvments. The amendment is intended to
reduce diversity in practice in how cerfain transactions are classified in the statement of cash
flows. The issues addressed in the amendment are: debt prepayment or debt extinguishment
costs, settlement of zero-coupon debt instruments, contingent consideration payments made
after a business combination, proceeds from the settlement of insurance claims, proceeds from
the settlement of corporate-owned life insurance policies, including bank-owned life insurance
policies, distributions received from equity method investments, beneficial interests in
securitisation transactions; and, separately identifiable cash flows and application of the
predominance principle. The amendment is effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2018. The Trustee is currently evaluating the impact, if any, of this gnidance on the Series
Trust's financial statements and disclosures.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Finanecial Statements

May 31, 2019
{Continued)

10. Recent Prononncements (continned)

In Movember 2016, the FASE issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230):
Restricted Cash. The amendments require that a statement of cash flows explain the change
during the period in the total of cash, cash equivalents, and amounts generally described as
restricted cash or restricted cash eguivalents. Therefore, amounts generally described as
restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash
equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end of period total amounts shown
on the statement of cash flows. The amendment does not provide a definition of restricted cash
or restricted cash equivalents. The amendment is effective for fiscal vears beginning after
December 15, 2018, The Trustee is currently evaluating the impact of this guidance on the
Series Trust’s financial statements and disclosures.

In August 2018, the FASB issued the ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurements (Topic 820):
Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement,
The amendments in this update are issued as part of the FASB disclosure framework project.
The disclosure framework project’s objective and primary focus is to improve the effectiveness
of disclosures in the notes to financial statements by facilitating clear communication of the
information required under US GAAP. The amendments in this update modify the disclosure
requirements on fair value measurements. Disclosure requirements for the amount of and
reasons for Level T and Level 11 transfers, the policy of timing of transfers between levels,
valuation process for Level I fair value measurements and the changes in unrealised gains and
losses for Level 11l investments held at the end of the reporting period have been removed. In
liew of a roll forward for Level T fair value measurements, diselosure is required regarding
transfers into and out of Level 11T of the fair value hierarchy and purchases and issues of Level
III assets and liabilities. ASU 201813 also amends disclosure reguirements for the Level IT1
reconciliation for non-public entities. The guidance is effective for financial statements with
fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2019, Early adoption is permitted. The Series
Trust has adopted the provisions of ASU 2018-13 for the period ending May 31, 2019,

11. Subsequent Events

Management performed a subsequent events review up o Seplember 26, 2019, which is the
date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Effective fune 1, 2019 through to September 26, 2019 investors subscribed US$1,941,696 in
respect of Class USD Units and USS478,052 in respect of Class JPY Hedged Units into the
Series Trust and there were no redemptions in respect of Class USD Units and Class JPY
Hedged Units from the Series Trust.

Effective October 1, 2019, the existing Investment Manager, K2 Advisors Japan Limited iz
merging into Franklin Templeton Investments Japan Limited.

Management concluded that there were no other subsequent events which required additional
disclosure in these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved on September 26, 2019.
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2020

77,583,580.55 8,208,342,822
138,444.98 14,647,479
77,445,135.57 8,193,695,343
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2019 12 31

2019 2018

1,362,151 144,116 1,418,614 150,089

5 7 914,653 96,770 982,827 103,983
137,732 14,572 112,528 11,905
12 93,094 9,849 157,411 16,654

2,507,630 265,307 2,671,380 282,632

8 292,561 30,953 337,104 35,666
10 334,905 35,433 - -
627,466 66,386 337,104 35,666

3,135,096 331,693 3,008,484 318,298

133,035 14,075 137,255 14,522
6 709,440 75,059 735,961 77,865
10 213,578 22,597 - -
490,217 51,865 533,732 56,469
811,251 85,830 951,536 100,673

2,357,521 249,426 2,358,484 249,528

10 127,575 13,497 - -
127,575 13,497 - -
9 50,000 5,290 50,000 5,290
600,000 63,480 600,000 63,480
650,000 68,770 650,000 68,770

3,135,096 331,693 3,008,484 318,298

2020 30
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2019 12 31
2019 2018
6 10,015,654 1,059,656 9,990,854 1,057,032
7 (126,731) (13,408) (80, 230) (8,488)

9,888,923 1,046,248

9,910,624 1,048,544

512,319 54,203 330,831 35,002
61,113 6,466 53,195 5,628

10 11 (7,017,990)  (742,503)  (6,949,592)  (735,267)
3,444,365 364,414 3,345,058 353,907
3,444,365 364,414 3,345,058 353,907
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2019 12 31
2017 12 31 50,000 5,290 600,000 63,480 650,000 68,770
- - 3,345,058 353,907 3,345,058 353,907
- - (3,345,058) (353,907) (3,345,058)  (353,907)
2018 12 31 50,000 5,290 600,000 63,480 650,000 68,770
IFRS 16 - - (2,003) (212) (2,003) (212)
2019
50,000 5,290 597,997 63,268 647,997 68,558
- - 3,444,365 364,414 3,444,365 364,414
- - (3.442,362) (364,202) (3,442,362)  (364,202)
2019 12 31 50,000 5,290 600,000 63,480 650,000 68,770
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2019 12 31
2019 2018

3,444,365 364,414 3,345,058 353,907

248,817 26,325 39,747 4,205
68,174 7,213 (441,582)  (46,719)
(25,204) (2,667) (19,315) (2,044)

64,317 6,805 42,696 4,517
(4,220) (446) (41,213) (4,360)
(26,521) (2,806) (6,065) (642)

(43,515) (4,604) 143,563 15,189
3,726,213 394,233 3,062,889 324,054
- - (33,640) (3,559)
7,246 767 11,984 1,268
7,246 767 (21,656) (2,291)
(3,582,647)  (379,044)  (3,023,759)  (319,914)
(207,275)  (21,930) - -
(3,789,922)  (400,974) (3,023,759)  (319,914)
(56,463) (5,974) 17,474 1,849
1,418,614 150,089 1,401,140 148,241
1,362,151 144,116 1,418,614 150,089
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2019 IFRS
(IFRS )
IFRS 16
(a IFRS 16
IAS 17 IFRS 16
IFRIC
- SIC 27
)

(

(

(

IFRS 16
IFRS 16 IFRS 16
2019 IAS 17 IFRS 16
IAS 17 IFRS 16
2018 12 31 2019
546,424 546,424
546,424 546,424
207,274 207,274
341,153 341,153
548,427 548,427
2018 12 31 2018

2019
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2018 12 31 854,530
(283,893)
570,637
(22,210)
2019 IFRS 16 548,427
(a
SH 2001 20
A.S. * 1978 27
N.D. * 1978 27
N.S. * 1978 27
1979 10 26
IMS 2012 27
IMS 2013 25
* 2019 2018 12 31
o
(
(
(
)
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2019 2019 2018 2018

0 30 282,381 (23,746) 317,122 (3,133)

31 60 49,882 (6.,574) 81,707 (1,236)

61 90 56,610 (12,011) 12,666 (311)

91 842,771 (274,660) 734,282 (158,270)

1,231,644 (316,991) 1,145,777 (162,950)
(c
@
(e
(f

2020 2018 2010 2020
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2020
40 50
2019 2018
9,113,418 8,761,939
464,185 610,148
438,051 618,767
10,015,654 9,990,854
2019 2018
(640,290) (605,299)
2019 605,229 2018 :644,523
2019 12 31 IFRS 15
2019 2018
1,231,644 1,145,777
(316,991) (162,950)
914,653 982,827
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2019 2018
162,950 171,061
126,731 80,230
- (22,880)
27,310 (65,461)
316,991 162,950

2019
341,637 402,996 239,816 156,891 1,141,340
- (9,406) - - (9,406)
341,637 393,590 239,816 156,891 1,131,934
181,790 358,853 172,710 90,884 804,237
4,099 17,083 8,781 7,335 37,298
- (2,162) - - (2,162)
185,889 373,774 181,491 98,219 839,373

2019 12 31

155,748 19,316 58,325 58,672 292,561

2018
341,637 399,545 236,413 156,891 1,134,486
- 14,268 19,372 - 33,640
- (10,817)  (15,969) - (26,786)
341,637 402,996 239,816 156,891 1,141,340
177,692 346,243 171,807 83,549 779,291
4,098 20,558 7,756 7,335 39,747
- (7,948) (6,854) - (14,802)
181,790 358,853 172,709 90,884 804,236

2018 12 31

159,847 44,143 67,107 66,007 337,104
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2019 2018
80,000 96,000 96,000
41,667 50,000 50,000
2019
334,905
2019 2018
213,578 -
127,575 -
2019 12 31

113,355

2018 116,247
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12.
2019 12 31
2019 2018
464,186 610,148
IMS 116,239 115,981
2019 2018
93,094 154,711
2019 12 31 4,464,445 2018
4,245,139 88,356 2018 91,120
13.
2019 12 31
2018
14.
2020 11 COVID-19
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2019
{srated in United States dollars)

Maote 2019 2018
Assels
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,362,151 1418614
Accounts receivable 57 914,653 082,827
Otther receivables and prepaid expenses 137,732 112,528
Due from affiliated companies 12 93,094 157,411
2,507,630 2671380
Non-current asseis
Froperty, plant and equipment ] 292,561 337,104
Righi-of-use asset 1] 334,905 -
627 466 357,104
Total assets US% 3,135,096 3,008,484
Liabilities and sharcholder’s equity
Current liabilities
Accounts pavable and accreed expenses 133,035 137,255
Unearned income and payable to clients 3] T09,440 735,961
Lease liability 1] 213,578 -
Staff bonuses payable 490,217 533,732
Dividends payable 811,251 951,536
2,357,521 2358,484
Non-current liabilities
Lease liability 10 127,575 -
127,575 -
Shareholder’s equity
Share capital 2 20,000 50,000
Retained earnings 600,000 &00,000
650,000 650,000
Total labilities and sharcholder's equity S8 3,135,006 3,008,484

See accompanying notes to consolidated fimaneial statements.
Approved on behalf of the Board on 30 March g0

— Director

—
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INTERENATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31, 2019

Ooooooooooooooooooad

{erared in United Stares dollavs)
Mote 2019 2018
Income
Revenuc 6 10,015,654 9,990,854
Less: Bad and doubtful debis 7 (126,731} {80,230
9,588,923 9910624
Other income 512,319 330,831
Renial income 61,113 53,195
Administration expenses 10,11 (7.017,590) (6,949,592)
Results from operating activities 3,444,363 3,345,058
Net income for year USs 3,444,365 3,345,058

See accompanyving notes fo conselidated financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Sharcholder's Equity

Year ended December 31, 2019
(stated in United States dollars)

Share Retained

capital earnings Total
Balance at December 31, 2017 50,000 G00,000 650,00
Met income for year = 3345058 3,345,058
Dividends declared - (3,345058) (3,345,058
Balance at December 31, 2018 0,000 600, (D 650,000

Adjustment from the adoption of IFRS 16 (2,003) (2,003)

Adjusted balance at January 1, 2019 50,000 597,997 647,997

Net income for year 3444365 3,444,365

Dividends declared (3.442,362) (3.442.362)

Balance at December 31, 2019 USS 50,000 600,000 650,000

See accompanying noles to consolidated financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2019
{stated in United States dollars)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 2018
Operating activities
Met income for year 3444 365 3,345,058
Add{deduct):
Items ot affecting the movemnent of cash:
Depreciation 248,817 39,747
Met changes in non-cash balances relating to operations:
Accounts receivable 68,174 (441,582)
Other receivables and prepaid expenses (25,204} (19.315)
Due from affiliated companies 64,317 42,696
Accounts pavable and accrued expenses (4,220} (41,213)
Unearned income and payable to clients {26,521} (6,065)
Staff bonuses payable (43,515) 143,563
Met cash provided by operating activities 3,726,213 3,062,889
Investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets - (33,640)
Loss on disposal of assets 7,246 11,984
Met cash provided by /{used in) investing activities 7,246 (21,656)
Financing activities
Dividends paid (3,582,647 (3,023,759)
Repayvment of lease liabilities {207,275) -
Met cash used in financing activities {3,789.922) (3,023,759)
(Decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents during vear (56,463) 17,474
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 1,418,614 1,401,140
Cash and cash equivalents end of vear Uss 1,362,151 1,418,614

See accompanving motes fo contolidated financiol statements,
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(siated in United States dollars)

1. Incorporation and background information

International Management Services Lid. (the “Company”) was incorporated under the Companies
Law (2020 Revision) of the Cayvman Islands on August 30, 1974 and provides company and
insurance management and corporate secretarial services. On December 12, 1985, the Company
was licensed under Section 4 (5) of The Companies Management Law (2018 REevision) to carry on
the business of company management in or within the Cayman Islands. On May 13, 1988, the
Company was licensed under Section 4 (2) of The Insurance Law 2010, to carry on the business of
insurance management in or within the Cayman [slands. On July 27, 1994, the Company was
licensed under Section 12 of The Mutual Funds Law (2020 Revision) to casry on the business of
mutual fund administration. On June 7, 2004 the Company was licensed under the Banks and Trust
Companies Law (2020 Revision), to carry on trust business from within the Cayman Islands. On
December 28, 2006, the Company surrendered its Companies Management Licence,

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of The IMS Group Lid., a company also incarporated
in the Cayman Islands.

The financial results of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries (the “Group™) are
consolidated at vear end to form the Group.

The registered office of the Company is 3" Floor Harbour Centre, George Town, P.O. Box 61, Grand
Cayman KY1-1 102, Cayman Islands,

The Group had 27 employees as at December 31, 2019 (2018: 28).

2. Basis of presentation

fal Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements are prepared and approved by the Directors in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRES™) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“TASE™).
Management has made an assessment of the Group®s ability to continue as a going concern and
is =atisfied that the Group has the resources to continue in busingss for the foreseeable future,
Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast a significant
doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated
financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

(B Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for
financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at amortised cost.

fe) Functional and presenlation currency

The Group's functional and presentation currency is the United States dollar and not the local
currency of the Cayman Islands reflecting the fact that the Group’s operations are primarily
conducted in United States dollars (US%).
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2019
{xtaved in United States dollars)

2. Basis of presentation (continued)
{d) Uze aof estimates and jrdgemerns
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policics and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the

reported amounts of income and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from
those estimates,

fe) Covresponding figures
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
(1 New Standards effective for annual period beginning | January 2019

Mew standards and amendments effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2019 include
IFRS 9 Prepayment Featwres with Negative Compensation (Amendments to [FRS 90, The
adoption of this amendment has no significant impact to the Company, JFRS 186 Leases has also
been adopted and the nature and impact of this new standard is described below.

3. Changes in significant accounting policies
fa} IFRS 16, Leases

This standard replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRS 16 “Leases” replaces [AS 17 *Leases” along with

three Interpretations (IFRIC 4 *Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”, SIC 15

‘Operating Leases-Incentives’ and SIC 27 *Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving

the Legal Form of a Lease').

A lease is defined as *a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the

underlying asset) for a period in exchange for consideration’, To apply this definition, the Group

assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:

(i) the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract
or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the
Crroup;

{iif the Group has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope
of the contract;

(¥} the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the pericd of use,
The Group assess whether it has the right to direct *how and for what purpose” the asset is
used throughout the period of use.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2019
{sraved in United Staves dollars)

3. Changes in significant accounting policies (continued)
{a) IFRS 16, Leases fcontinued)

The adoption of this new Standard has resulted in the Group recognising a right-of-use asset and
related lease liahility in connection with all former operating lease of its current premises at 3
floor Harbour Centre, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman [slands.

The new Standard has been applied wsing the modified retrospective approach, with the
cumulative effect of adopting IFRS 16 being recognised in equity as an adjusiment io the
opening balance of retained eamings for the current period. Prior periods have not been restated.

On transition to IFRS 16 the weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease
lighilities recognised under IFES 16 was 3%,

The following is & reconciliation of the financial statement line items from [AS 17 to IFRS 16 at |

January 2019:
IAS 17 carrying Remeasurement IFRS 16 carrying
amount at 51 amounnt at 1
December 2018 January 2019
Non-current assets
Right-of-use asset - 546,424 546,424
Total Right-of-use asset - 546,424 546,424
Current liabilities
Lease liability - 207,274 207,274
Non-current liabilities
Lease liability - 341,153 341,153
Total Lease liability 548427 548,427
10
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2019
(stated in United States dollars)

3. Changes in significant accounting policies (continwed)
{a) IFRS 16, Leases fconiinued)

The following is a reconciliation of tofal operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018 (as
disclosed in the 2018 audited consolidated financial statements) to the lease liabilities recognised at

1 January 2019:

Total operating lease commitments disclosed at 31 Decemnber 2018 854,530
Adjustment for cost of area maintenance (283,893)
Operating lease commitments before discounting uss 570,637
Discounted using incremental borrowing rate (22,210)
Total lease liabilities recognised under IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 Uss 548,427

4. Sipnificant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all perinds presented in
these consolidated financial statements. There have been no changes to accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are as follows:

(a) Consalidated wholly owned subsidiaries

Drate of

incorporation’

Company Business addition
SH Corporate Serviees Lid Registered Office Services April 20, 2001
AS. Nominees Ltd.* Mominee Company January 27, 1978
M.I. Mominee Lid, * Mominee Company January 27, 1978
M.5. Nomines Lud.* Mominee Company January 27, 1978
Cardinal Nominee Limited* Mominge Company October 26, 1979
IMS Trustees Lid.* Trustes Services Aprl 27, 2012
IMS Liguidations Lid. Liguidation Services January 23, 2013

#  These wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company have been established to act only in a
nominee capacity and have not traded in their own right during the year ended December 31,
2019 and 2018,

11
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2019
{stated in United States dollars)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
fa) Consalidated wholly owned subsidiaries feontinued)

All income earned and expenses incurred by these companies are accounted for by the Company
and all inter-company transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences to the date that control ceases. The Group accounts for business
combinations using the acquisition methed when control is transferred to the Group, The
consideration is gencrally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net asset acquired.

) Finaneial assets and lfabilites
i Classification

A financial asset is any asset that is cash, a contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset, or (o exchange fnancial instruments under conditions that are potentially
favourable or an equity instrument of ancther enterprise, Financial assets comprise
cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, other receivables and prepaid expenses and
due from affiliated companies.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or
another financial asset or to exchange financial instruments with another enterprise under
conditions that are potentially unfavourable. Financial liabilities comprise due to affiliated
companies, accounts pavable and accrued expenses, staff bonuses pavable and dividend
payable,
(i} Recognition

The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

(i) Measurement

Financial instruments are measured initially at cost. For financial asseis acquired, cost
is the fair value of the consideration given, while for financial liabilities, cost is the fair
wvalue of consideration received. The amontized cost of a financial asset or liability is
the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition,
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between the imitial amount recognized and
the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairments.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 20019
{stated in United States dollars)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Fingnclal assets and labilities (eontinied)
fiv)  Fair value
Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on market conditions and
information about the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and
involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgement and therefore, cannot be
determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the
estimates.

The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities is considered to approximate fair
value due to the immediate or short-term nature of these financial instruments.

vl Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the Group loses control over the contractual rights
that comprise that asset, This occurs when the rights are realised, expire or are surrendered,

A financial hability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

vi)  fmpairment and calenlation of recoverable amaunt

Previously financial assets were reviewed at each statement of financial position date to
determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, If any such indication
existed, the recoverable amount of the asset was estimated.

IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model as opposed 1o an incurred credit loss model.
The expected credit loss model requires the Company to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition of the financial assets. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The Group's accounts reccivable is related to services that are different in nature, the
majority are derived from the provision of Fiduciary services and then to a lesser extent
from the provision of registered office services. The clients that these services are
provided to consist of a majority of regulated and administrated hedge funds and insurance
captives, the remainder of clients are companies or trusts belonging to individuals or
individual companies.

These very same clients may have fees outstanding for the entire period, however, as the
client companies are in good standing it is highly probable that they will settle their dues
when renewing their companies’ registrations in the following vear. Management has
determined that providing for these first category receivables in full for all ageing
categorics is the most prudent path, conversely as management believe second category
receivables to be fully collectable, no provision would therefore be necessary as no credit
loss is expected.

13
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2019
{erared in United Stares dollars)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
k) Fimancial assets and ligbilivties feomiimed)
(vi)  Impairment and calenlation of recoverable amount feomtinued)

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. If in a
subsequent period the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
ohjectively to an event cccurring after the write-down, the write-down or allowance is
reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.
g} Revenue Recognition

The Group recognises revenue in the amount expected 1o be received for services supplied at a

point in time or over time as contractual performance obligations are fulfilled and control of

services passes to the customer.

Where the contraciual performance obligations are satisfied over time and revenue is recognised
over time.

Where performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time, revenue is recognised when the
rizks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer. This is at the peint where the
service is delivered to the customer and there are no unfulfilled obligations that could affect the
customer's acceptance of the service,
Nature of services
The following is a description of the principal activities from which the Group generates its
revenue,
(i) Professional services
Fees generated from a range of professional services including directorship services,
captive insurance management services, trustee services and anti-money laundering
sErvices,
(i) Mamagement fee from related party
Fees generated frorn the provision of administration services to a related party.
(i) Registered affice services
Fees generated from the provision of registered office services.
Performance abligations and reverie recognition policies

The Group recognizes revenue from the provision of fiduciary and registered office services to
client companies. The specific services required involve the annual provision of a director to act
in his fiduciary capacity for client companies as well as the provision of a client company
registered office for a set annual fee. In addition, as part of the contractual terms, client
companies also require corporate services throughout the financial year on the basis of fees
specified in the contract,
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 20019
{srated i United Stares dollars)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
fe) Revemue Recogmition
Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies feonfinued)

Fiduciary services are provided for the annual period represented by a calendar vear which
coincides with the Group’s financial year. The service is provided for the annual period unless
the client company relationship is terminating, and the director is formally required to resign
from the board, in these cases pro-rated fees are agreed upon for the reduced

The Group's standard contracts for fiduciary services involve a flat fee for the vear however in
some instances a combination of both a flat fee for annual services recognised over time as well
as a fee based on time spent to perform additional services in the fiduciary function. The director
services agreements outline the conditions of the performance obligations, these are ad-hoc
requests, based on the needs of the client company. These time spent services are distinct in
timing and are recognized based on the date the service was performed.

The provision of registered office services is considered a distinct service which occurs in the
calendar vear, This period aligns with the Group and the Government financial year, the revenue
is therefore recognized when the service has been rendered, over the financial vear. Refer to
note § for further disclosures,

Recagnition of confract balances

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer.
If the Group performs by transferring services to a costomer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset i recognised for the unearned
consideration that is conditional. The Group does not have any contract assets as al December
31, 20019 (200 8: USE Nil),

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Group transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is
recopnised when the payment is made or the pavment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liahilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract. The Group's
contract liabilities comprise unearned income from pavments received that relate to the
following years revenue, Refer to note & for details,
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Maotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2009
(stated in United Siates dollars)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

{d} Foreign currency
Assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at rates of
exchange prevailing at the consolidated statement of financial position date. Transactions in
foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction.
Amy resulting exchange gains or losses are credited or debited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

(e} Cash and cash egquivalents
Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of current bank accounts held with financial institutions
with original terms o maturity of three months or less.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated imipairment loss.

Depreciation is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income after taking
into account residual values over the fallowing expected useful lives of the assets using the
respective methods:

Office building 25% pa.  Reducing Balance
Computer equipment 20% p.a.  Straight Line Method
Furniture and equipment 10% p.a.  Reducing Balance
Leasehold improvements 10% p.a.  Reducing Balance

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. Impairment losses are recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year in which they are identified.
(gl Leases
At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on
the balance sheet, The rght-of-uge asset is measured at cost, which iz made up of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of
any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made
in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).
The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the leass
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the nght-of-use asset or the end
of the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such
indicators exist,
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Maotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2019
(stated in United States dollars)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

th) Income recogmition and fees billed in advance
Management fees are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the period for which services are provided.
Uneamned income and payable to clients comprise funds received from clients as prepavments
for services to be performed in future years,

il Expenses
Expenses are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the
accrual basis.

(i} Emplayes benefits

(i} Defined comtribution pension plarn
The Group participates in a defined contribution plan. A defined contribution plan is a
post-emplovment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and has no legal of constructive obligation if the plan does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are
recognised a8 an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
ingurred.

(i} Short-term benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has

a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the emplover and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(k) Assers under administration

In the normal course of business, the Group provides fiduciary services by acting as trustee of
Trusts. The assets and linbilities of the Trusts under the Groups management are not incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements.

5. Financial risk management

fa}l Introduction and overview

The Group has exposure to credit, liquidity and market risks through its financial instrurnents, This
nole presents information aboul the Group's exposure to each of these nisks and the Group's
objective, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk and the Group’s management of
capital.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continuad)

December 31, 2019

{stated in United States dollars)

5. Financial risk management (continued)
Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group's financial risk management framework.

(&) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a client or counterparty o a financial
instrument fails to meet its obligations and arises primarily from the Group’s accounts
receivable, cash and cash equivalents, and due from affilisted companies.
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each client. The demographics of the Group's client base, including the default risk of the
industry and country in which clients operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. No client
individuglly represents more than 5% of the Group’s income,
The Group's establishes a provision for bad and doubtful accounts that represents its estimate
of incurred losses in respect of accounts receivable. The allowance is for specific balances
within certain ageing periods.
The nature of the Group's exposure to credit risk and its objectives, policies and processes for
managing credit risk have not changed significantly from the prior vear. The Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of its financial assets.

Management of credit risk
The Group manages credit risk in respect of cash and cash equivalents by using reputable

financial institutions to safeguard these financial assets. Management does not expect any
financial losses as a result of these relationships.

The Group manages credit risk in respect of accounts receivables by performing inifial credit
evaluations of the financial condition of its clients. Periodic reviews of owtstanding customer
balances are performed by management. Management does not expect any significant
counterparties to fail to meet their obligations, Management believe that unimpaired amounts
that are past due are still collectible in full,

18
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2019
{siated in United Staies dollars)

5. Financial risk management (continued)
The Group's aging of accounts receivables at the reporting date was:

Gross  Impairment Gross  Impairment

2019 2019 2018 2018
010 30 days 282,381 (23,746) 317,122 (3,133)
31 1o 60 days 49,882 (6.574) 81,707 (1.236)
61 1o 90 days 56,610 (12,011} 12,666 {311y
hore than 91 days 842,771 [ 274,660) 734,282 (158,270)

USE 1,231,644 (316,991} 1,145,777 (162,950)

fe) Liguidity visk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.
The nature of the Group®s exposure to liguidity risk and its objectives, policies and processes
fior managing liguidity risk have not changed significantly from the prior vear,

(d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, will affect
the Group®s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return.

fe) Currency risk

Currency risks arize as a portion of the Group's pavment of expenses are in Cavrnan Island
dollars, Currency risk is mitigated as the Cayman Islands dollar is fixed against the United States

dollar.

() Capital management

The Group's regulater, the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority (the “Authoriny™), sets and moniters
capital requirements for the Group under the Monetary Authority Law (2020 Revision), the
Companies Management Law (2018 Revision), the Insurance Law, 2010, the Mutual Funds Law
{2020 Revision) and the Bank and Trust Companies Law (2020 Revision). The Group is required to
have a minimum net worth of CI$400,000 (US$300,000) and has a 3 month filing deadline after vear
end date. The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base to sustain future development of
the business. The Group has complied with all imposed capital requirements throughout the year,
and there were no material changes to the Group®s management of capital during the vear,
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2019
{stated i United States dollars)

6. Hevenue
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with clients and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
A disaggregation of revenue recognised from contracts with clients by service offering at the
reporting date is outlined below.,

Dixagprepated revenue
2019 2018
Profiessional services 9113418 8,761,939
Management fiee from related party 464,185 610,148
Registered office services 438,051 518,767
USS 10,015,654 9,940,554

Annual fees are fees charged for the services noted above to client companies. This is primarily in
the form of fixed fees, with additional fees earned on a time spent basis as charged throughout the
year. Revenue is recognised over time as services are rendered or at a point in time when control of
the service transfers to the clients.

Contract liabifities

The following table provides information about the contract liabilities from contracts with clients,
the figures below constitute the revenue portion of amounts represented as unearned income and
pavable to clients:

Contract Liabilities
20019 2008

Increases due to pavments received that relate to the following
VEars revenue (640,290) (605, 299)

Of the total balance from the contract liability as at January 1, 20019 USS 605,220 (2018: USS
644,523) has been recognised as revenue in the current year.

Mo information is provided about remaining performance obligations at December 31, 2009 that have
original expected duration of one year or less, as allowed by IFRS 15,

20
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7. Accounts receivable
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2019 2018

Gross accounts receivable 1,231,644 1,145,777
Provizion for doubtful accounts {316,991) (1629500

Uss 914,653 982,827
Movements in the provision for doubtful accounts during the year are as fiollows:

2019 2018

Balance at beginning of year 162,950 171,061
Charge to consolidated statement of comprehensive income 126,731 80,230
Recoveries of doubtful debts - (22,880)
Doubtful debts written of 27,310 [63,461)

Uss 316,891 162,950

8. Property, plant and equipment
Office  Computer Furniture & Leasehald
2019 building  equipment  equipment  improvemenis Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning 341,637 402,996 139816 156,891 1,141,340
of vear
Additions - - - - -
Disposals - (9.406) - - (9.406)
Balance at end of year 341,637 193 590 239,816 156,891 1,131,934
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning 181,790 358,853 172,710 00,884 804,237
of vear
Charge for year 4,090 17,083 8,781 7,335 37,298
Digposals - {2,162) - - (2.162)
Balance at end of year 185,889 373,774 181,491 98,219 839,373
Met book value at
December 31, 2019 USE 155,748 19,316 58,325 58,672 242,561
21
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8. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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Office  Computer Furniture & Leasehold

20018 building  eguipment  equipment  improvements Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning 341,637 399,545 236,413 156,891 1,134,486

of vear
Additions - 14,268 19,372 - 33,640
Disposals - (10,817)  (15969) . (26,786)
Balance at end of year 341,637 402,996 239816 156,891 1,141,340
Accumiilated depreciation:
Balance at beginning 177,692 346,243 171,807 83,549 779,291

of vear
Charge for year 4,098 20,558 7,756 7335 39,747
Disposals - (7,948) (6,834) - (14,802)
Balance at end of year 181,790 358,853 172,709 90,884 804,236
Met book value at
December 31, 2018 USS 159,847 44,143 67,107 66,007 337,104

9. Share capital
2019 2018

Authorised:

50,000 shares of CIS1 each Uss 96,000 6,000
Issued and fully paid:

41,667 shares US% 50,000 30,000
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD,
Maotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Drecember 31, 2019
{stated in United States dollars)

10, Leases
The Group has leases for its operating premises, a floor of an office building, the lease is reflected
on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The Group classifies its right-of-use
assel in a consistent manner 1o its property, plant and equipment (see Note 8).
The lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there i5 a contractual right for the Group to
sublet the asset to another party, the right-of-use asset can only be used by the Group. Leases may
only be cancelled by incurring a substantive termination fee.

The table below describes the nature of the Group's leasing activities recognised on the balance

sheet:
Right-of-use asset Remaining term of the lease 2019
Office premises 1 year, 7 months LS5 334,905

Lease liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

2019 2018
Less than one year 213,578 -
Between one and two vears Uss 127,575 -

11. Defined contribution pension plan

The Group participates in the Fidelity Pension Plan, a defined contribution pension scheme, The
Group is required to match each employee’s contribution on & one to one basis up to 5% of the
employee's annual salary. During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group contributed
US$113,355 (2018: USS116,247).

23

215/266



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 20019
(stated in Unived States dollars)

12. Related party transactions

During the vear ended December 31, 2019, the Group earned the following administration and
management fees from its affiliated companies:

e 008
Corporate Filing Services Lid. USS 464,186 610,148
IMS Securiiies Lid. 116,239 115,981
Amounts due from related affiliates are as follows:

2019 2018
Corporate Filing Services Lid, LISS 93,004 154,711

During the vear ended December 31, 2019, the Group paid USS 4,464,445 (2018: US54,245,139)
in short-term employment benefits and USS 88,356 (2018: US591,120) in long-term employmeni
benefits to key management personnel.

13. Contingencics

The Group, in its fiduciary capacity, may be a party to litigation and claims in the normal course of
businezs. In the opinion of the Directors, which is based on the advice of the Group's legal counsel,
no contingency provisions are required at 31 December 2019 (201 8: Nil),

14. Subsequent events

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization officially declared COVID-19, the disease
caused by the novel coronavirus, a pandemic. Management is closely monitoring the evolution of
this pandemic, including how it may affect the economy and the general population. Management
has not yet determined the financial impact of these events.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has evaluated and disclosed all
material subsequent evenis up to March 30, 2020 which is the date that the conselidated financial
statements were available to be issued,
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Independent Auditor’ s Report

To G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund (a series trust of Offshore Strategy Fund) (the Series Trust) as
at May 31, 2019, and the results of its operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the
financial highlights for the period from November 15, 2018 (commencement of operations) to May 31,
2019 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

What we have audited
The Series Trust’ s financial statements comprise

the statement of assets and liabilities as at May 31, 2019;

the schedule of investments as at May 31, 2019;

the statement of operations for the period from November 15, 2018 (commencement of operations) to
May 31, 2019;

the statement of changes in net assets for the period from November 15, 2018 (commencement of
operations) to May 31, 2019;

the statement of cash flows for the period from November 15, 2018 (commencement of operations) to
May 31, 2019;

the financial highlights for the period from November 15, 2018 (commencement of operations) to May
31, 2019; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’ s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual Report
(but does not include the Series Trust’ s financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon).

Our opinion on the Series Trust’ s financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Series Trust’ s financial statements, our responsibility is to

read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines 1is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series
Trust’ s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
this evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Series Trust.

Auditor’ s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internul control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust’ s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely
in its capacity as trustee of the Series Trust in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands
September 26, 2019
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Independent auditor’ s report

To G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund (a series trust of Offshore Strategy Fund) (the Series Trust) as
at May 31, 2020, and the results of its operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the
financial highlights for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

What we have audited
The Series Trust’ s financial statements comprise

the statement of assets and liabilities as at May 31, 2020;

the schedule of investments as at May 31, 2020;

the statement of operations for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the financial highlights for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’ s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual Report
(but does not include the Series Trust’ s financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon).

Our opinion on the Series Trust’ s financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Series Trust' s financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines 1is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series
Trust’ s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
this evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Series Trust.

Auditor’ s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust’ s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely
in its capacity as trustee of the Series Trust in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands
October 6, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
To the Directors of International Management Services Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of International Management Services Ltd. (the

“ Group” ), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019,
and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholder®s equity and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects the financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2019, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (* IFRS” ).

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Group®s directors as a body
and for regulatory filing purposes only. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (* ISA” ). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (* IESBA Code” ), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter
In addition, the financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2018 were audited
by another auditor who expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements on March 27, 2019.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group®s financial reporting process.
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Auditor®™s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISA will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material

if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group®s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group®s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor"s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

GrantThornton
George Town
Grand Cayman
March 30, 2020
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